
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                      

                                                                               
   

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 25, 2011 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
              
 9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

� October 18, 2011 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
Auditor 
a.   Surplus of Personal Property   
Commissioners 
b. Adoption of Budget Policies and Procedures  
Human Services 
c. State Mental Health Agreement, BFCRUS-11/13-00, w/Greater Columbia Behavioral Health 
d. Prepaid Inpatient Health Plan Agreement, BFCRUP-11-13-00, w/Greater Columbia 

Behavioral Health   
e. Recovery Contract Amendment, #BENFR-MHBG-11/12-00, w/Greater Columbia Behavioral 

Health 
f. Housing & Essential Needs Grant w/WA State Department of Commerce  
g. Agreement, #11/13-SA-SCC-00 w/Somerset Counseling Center 
h. Contract Amendment, #0963-68016-05, w/DSHS for Substance Abuse & Prevention 

Treatment 
i. Agreement, #1163-35777, w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities 
j. Agreement, #11/13-SA-FSCCS-00, w/First Steps Community Counseling Services 
Office of Public Defense 
k.   Excess Compensation for Indigent Defense Services for L Swinney 
Parks 
l. Contract w/Lindstrom Construction Co., LLC for Restroom Project @ Rattlesnake Mt 

Shooting Facility  
Personnel 
m. County Claim CC2011-23 
n. County Claim CC2011-25 
o. Contract w/Our Lady of Lourdes for Occupational Health Services 
p. Designation of Employer Representative w/Penser NorthAmerica 
q. Employee of the Month Award 
Sheriff 
r.    Purchase Authorization from Crown Paper and Janitorial, Inc. 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 
Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
October 25, 2011 
Page Two 

 
Superior Court 
s. National Adoption Day Proclamation 
t. Interagency Agreement w/St of WA Administrative Office of the Courts for Interpreter 

Expenses 
Treasurer 
u. Amended Agreement w/Garda Cash Logistics for Armored Car Services  
v. Agreement w/Doxo, Inc. for Digital Property Tax Statements 
 

   9:05 AM Public Hearing 
   

Ordinance on Civil Fees – Lt. R Plummer    
 
Continued Vacation Unimproved Right of Way In Finley – S Schuetze 
 
Scheduled Business:     
 
Prosser Economic Development Quarterly Update – D Heintz 
 
911 Memorandum of Understanding – J. Barber 
 
WSU Extension Program Updates – M. Ophardt 
 
Code Enforcement Update – S Brown    
 
Executive Session:   
 
3rd Quarter Litigation Update – R Brown 
 

  Unscheduled Visitors  
   Board Assignment Update 

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 18, 2011, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman Leo Bowman 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; 
County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; Bryan Thorp, Public Works; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Jacki 
Lahtinen, District Court Administrator; Stuart Holmes, Auditor’s Office; Treasurer Duane 
Davidson; DPA Ryan Brown; Sam Schneider, Erhiza Rivera, and Nick Kooiker, Treasurer’s 
Office; Larry Moser, Public Works; Central Services Manager Randy Reid.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of October 11, 2011 were approved. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “e”. 
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Auditor 

a. Surplus of Personal Property 
Commissioners 

b. Contract w/Design West Architects for Architectural and Engineering Services 
Facilities 

c. Surplus of Personal Property 
Human Services 

d. Appointment of H DeLeon as County-Designated Mental Health Professional      
Public Works 

e. Authorization for Public Hearing on Six Year Road Program 
 

 



 - 2 - 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m.  
 
Continued Public Hearing  - Redistricting Plan 
 
Loretta Smith Kelty gave a Powerpoint presentation outlining the proposed Commissioner 
Redistricting Plan.   
 
Auditor Brenda Chilton said that after all redistricting plans were collected, her office would 
form new precinct lines to make sure they fell within district boundaries and then present a 
resolution for approval by the Board.   
 
Commissioner Bowman requested they respond back to the League of Women Voters.  Ms. 
Chilton said that she responded by email to Ms. Smith Kelty with the precinct information and 
Ms. Smith Kelty said she would pass it on to the League of Women Voters.   
 
Testimony 
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the Adoption of a Redistricting Plan for 
Commissioner Districts in Benton County as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and 
upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Doxo Payment Solutions Presentation   
 
Duane Davidson discussed a new web based billing system where property tax statements would 
be replaced with digital images delivered to a taxpayers account at Doxo’s website. From this 
platform, the taxpayer could generate E-payments to pay their property taxes electronically. It 
would reduce the amount of mailed property tax statements, saving charges for postage, supplies, 
and services. Additionally, would provide taxpayers with another paperless option to pay taxes 
and would require less time to process these payments compared to traditional payment 
processing methods. 
 
He said he would bring to the Board on the next consent agenda if the Board agreed and added 
that Benton County would be the third county in the State to contract with this service in addition 
to Walla Walla and Chelan.   
 
The Board agreed to add to the consent agenda next week. 
 
Bonds  
 
Mr. Davidson said the debt policy stated if there was an opportunity to call bonds that he should 
confer with the County Administrator.  He said that based on the current interest rate, it would be 
highly advantageous to call the 2011 Justice Center bonds and that Mr. Sparks agreed it was a 
good idea.  He said the call letter was ready to go; the Board agreed.   



 - 3 - 

Public Works – 2012-2017 Road Program 
 
Malcolm Bowie, Larry Moser, Steve Becken presented the 2012-2017 Road Program and briefly 
reviewed the following:  Piert Road (not 100% financing) but very positive; RAP (Clodfelter and 
Locust Grove Roads) – funding secured; Nine Canyon Road (9 not yet secure – probably will 
apply for funding next); Travis Road – funding was discussed.  
 
Commissioner Beaver said he wanted the Board to consider the BCES money (once it was 
returned) to be committed to this project.  Commissioner Small said he would be asking Mr. 
Sparks to look at some options on this project and asked to table the discussion until next week.  
Mr. Sparks said the Board didn’t have to decide today where the money would come from, only 
whether the Board wanted to make a commitment to fund the project.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said he was in favor of finding some money.  Commissioner Small said he 
wanted to postpone making a commitment until another week.   
 
Executive Session – Pending Litigation  
 
The Board went into executive session at 9:50 a.m. for approximately 10 minutes with DPA 
Ryan Lukson (via videoconference) to discuss pending litigation.  Also present were David 
Sparks, Cami McKenzie, DPA Ryan Brown, Melina Wenner, and Loretta Smith Kelty.  The 
Board came out at 9:52 a.m.  Mr. Lukson said the Board took no action. 
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Small briefly discussed the Noxious Weed issue and the WCIP issue and thanked 
the team for keeping Benton County in good financial position and looking out to the future.   
 
Commissioner Beaver reported on his YRWEB meetings in Yakima last week.  He said the game 
plan was to move forward with the watershed plan and into the next phase.  Additionally, he said 
he attended the Health District Finance meeting and asked how they planned to operate with 
15% less revenue. 
 
Chairman Bowman said he attended the WSAC Legislative Steering Committee meeting in 
Ellensburg on Tuesday and they reviewed the proposals of possible cuts by the State.  He said 
the result was to put emphasis on keeping economic recovery issues from being cut.  A few other 
things discussed were helping counties have better control over union issues; emails as legal 
documents; controls over public records requests; tort reform. 
 
DPA Ryan Brown briefly discussed tort reform (joint and several liability); maybe should push 
to have the state/counties paying only their percentage of fault; and the seatbelt law (unable to 
use that as contributory negligence). 
 



 - 4 - 

Claim for Damages 
 
CC 2011-26: Received on October 13, 2011 from John King 
CC 2011-27: Received on October 14, 2011 from Mohamed Fadlelmoula 
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 10/07/2011 
Warrant #: 42961-43142 
Total all funds: $944,442.67 
 
Check Date:  10/14/2011 
Warrant #:  43353-43765 
Total all funds: $798,468.14 
 
Check Date:  10/17/2011 
Taxes #: 10111105 
Total all funds: $31,801.49 
 
Check Date:  10/17/2011 
Warrant #: 233121-233143 
Direct Deposit #: 68305-68505 
Total all funds: $114,622.45 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
11-650: Surplus of Personal Property - Central Services Department 
11-651: Awarding Architectural and Engineering Services to Design West Architects, PA 
11-652: Surplus of Personal Property – Facilities Department 
11-653: Appointing Hector Deleon as County-Designated Mental Health Professional 
11-654: Setting Public Hearing for Six-Year Road Program 2012-2017 
11-655: Local Government Redistricting and Adoption of Redistricting Plan for 

Commissioner Districts in Benton County  
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:30 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Surplus of Personal Property







CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Adoption of Budget Policies and Procedures























































CurrentUser
Text Box
c. State Mental Health Agreement, BFCRUS-11/13-00, w/Greater Columbia Behavioral Health









CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Prepaid Inpatient Health Plan Agreement, BFCRUP-11-13-00, w/Greater ColumbiaBehavioral Health









CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Recovery Contract Amendment, #BENFR-MHBG-11/12-00, w/Greater Columbia BehavioralHealth









CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Housing & Essential Needs Grant w/WA State Department of Commerce













CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Agreement, #11/13-SA-SCC-00 w/Somerset Counseling Center











CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Contract Amendment, #0963-68016-05, w/DSHS for Substance Abuse & PreventionTreatment









CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Agreement, #1163-35777, w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities







CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Agreement, #11/13-SA-FSCCS-00, w/First Steps Community Counseling Services











CurrentUser
Text Box
k. Excess Compensation for Indigent Defense Services for L Swinney









CurrentUser
Text Box
l. Contract w/Lindstrom Construction Co., LLC for Restroom Project @ Rattlesnake MtShooting Facility







CurrentUser
Text Box
m. County Claim CC2011-23



CurrentUser
Text Box
n. County Claim CC2011-25



CurrentUser
Text Box
o. Contract w/Our Lady of Lourdes for Occupational Health Services







CurrentUser
Text Box
p. Designation of Employer Representative w/Penser NorthAmerica







CurrentUser
Text Box
q. Employee of the Month Award



CurrentUser
Text Box
r. Purchase Authorization from Crown Paper and Janitorial, Inc.





CurrentUser
Text Box
s. National Adoption Day Proclamation





CurrentUser
Text Box
t. Interagency Agreement w/St of WA Administrative Office of the Courts for InterpreterExpenses



Originals (2):  1-BC Commissioners,  1-Superior Court 

BENTON COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON; 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE REQUEST FOR SIGNATURE FROM THE BOARD OF BENTON 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ON THE INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT #IAA12160 
BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND THE STATE OF WASHINGTON ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICE OF THE COURTS 
 
WHEREAS, the Superior Court received notification on October 14, 2011 of available interpreter 
reimbursement funding to Benton County for the period of performance commencing July 1, 2011 and 
terminating on August 31, 2012; and  
 
WHEREAS, Patricia Austin, Superior Court Administrator, believes it is in the best interest of the 
Superior Court that the Agreement between State of Washington Administrative Office of the Courts 
and Benton County be approved as presented, NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County is hereby authorized to sign, on behalf of Benton 
County. 
 
DATED this _______ day of ______________________, 2011. 
 
BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Leo Bowman, Chairman of the Board 
 
 
_____________________________________ ATTEST: 
Jim Beaver, Member 
 
 
_____________________________________ ________________________________ 
Shon Small, Member     Clerk of the Board 
 
Constituting the Board of County  
Commissioners, Benton County,  
Washington. 
 
 
 





CurrentUser
Text Box
u. Amended Agreement w/Garda Cash Logistics for Armored Car Services







CurrentUser
Text Box
v. Agreement w/Doxo, Inc. for Digital Property Tax Statements







CurrentUser
Text Box
Ordinance on Civil Fees – Lt. R Plummer

















CurrentUser
Text Box
Continued Vacation Unimproved Right of Way In Finley – S Schuetze







 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  O F  U N D E R S T A N D I N G  
B E T W E E N  

WASHINGTON STATE MILITARY DEPARTMENT 
A N D  

BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON 
FRANKLIN COUNTY,  WASHINGTON 

 
This memorandum, by and between the Washington State Military Department, 
Emergency Management Division, State Enhanced 911 Program (otherwise 
hereinafter known as "STATE"), and Benton County, Washington, and Franklin 
County, Washington, (otherwise hereinafter known as the "COUNTIES "). 

WHEREAS, Benton County is a municipal corporation organized and existing under 
the Washington State Constitution and the laws of the state of Washington, and 
particularly those set forth in RCW Title 36; 

WHEREAS, Franklin County is a municipal corporation organized and existing under 
the Washington State Constitution and the laws of the state of Washington, and 
particularly those set forth in RCW Title 36; and, 

WHEREAS, the STATE is authorized to coordinate and facilitate the implementation 
and operation of enhanced 911 emergency communications (E91 1) systems 
throughout the state pursuant to RCW 38.52.520, and encourages regional E911 
systems where feasible to simplify network design and promote operating efficiencies 
and long-term cost savings; and, 

WHEREAS, the STATE is authorized to coordinate and facilitate the implementation 
and operation of enhanced 911 emergency communications (E91 1) systems 
throughout the state pursuant to RCW 38.52.520, and encourages regional E911 
systems where feasible to simplify network design and promote operating efficiencies 
and long-term cost savings; and, 

WHEREAS, Benton and Franklin Counties, by virtue of RCW 38.52.510, are directed to 
implement and mandated to provide funding for E911 systems on a county-wide 
basis and have done so; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County, Washington, and Franklin County, Washington,  
desire to study the feasibility of entering into an interlocal cooperation agreement to 
consolidate their respective E911 systems to determine if it is in the best interests 
of the counties, and their residents; and, 

WHEREAS, the STATE desires to conduct a study of the feasibility of consolidation 
of E911 between Benton County, Washington; and Franklin County, Washington; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the parties enter into this Memorandum of Understanding (this 
Memorandum) to outline the scope of a study for consolidated regional E911 
system operations, their expectations, and obligations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promise and premises, terms and 
conditions set forth below, it is hereby agreed as follows: 

 

 

CurrentUser
Text Box
911 Memorandum of Understanding – J. Barber



 

 

 

1. The purpose of this Memorandum is to set forth the terms and conditions 
under 'which the parties will conduct and participate in the study of the 
feasibility of operating a regional E911 system serving Benton County, 
Washington, and Franklin County, Washington. This Memorandum is 
limited to this purpose and does not apply to any other power, privilege, 
or authority, which may be exercised by any party. 

 
2. The STATE shall have the following duties with the advice of the Regional 

E911 Advisory Committee established pursuant to Paragraphs Three and Four 
below: 

 
A. Develop and conduct a well-defined mission statement and work plan 

for the study. 

B. Produce a Request for Proposal to obtain appropriate consulting assistance. 

C. Select and enter into a contract to acquire consulting services. 

D. Develop an overall project schedule including critical project milestones. 

E. Monitor performance and products produced by the consultant.  

F. Pay for all consulting services based upon completion of performance 
criteria. 

G. Act as the overall project coordinator to assure timely delivery of the 
feasibility documents. 

 

3.  The COUNTIES shall have the following duties: 
 

A. The COUNTIES shall establish a Regional E911 Advisory Committee 
pursuant to paragraph Four below. 

B. The Regional E91 I Advisory Committee shall advise the State 
regarding: 

1) Statements of desired outcomes. 

2) Any unique circumstances of Benton County, Washington, and Franklin 
County, Washington,  

3) All agencies and service providers affected by the proposed system. 

4) A recommended Schedule of public meetings for presentation of the 
study and public comment. 

 

3 



 

 

 
C. The COUNTIES shall provide to the State Consultant all requested 

historical operating information, growth projections, and other relevant 
materials necessary to evaluate the feasibility of establishing a 
regional E911 system. 

4. The COUNTIES shall establish a Regional E911 Advisory Committee to work 
with the State Consultant. The Committee shall have ten members, 5 from 
each of the COUNTIES selected by the Board of Commissioners.  
 

5. This Memorandum shall commence immediately upon execution by the parties 
and shall terminate upon completion and acceptance of the feasibility study. 
This memorandum may terminate, in whole or in part, prior to that date upon 
the agreement of all the parties. 

 
APPROVED this 12th day of October 2011 
 
 
                                                                BOARD OF COUNTYCOMMIONERS 
FRANKLINCOUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
                                                                 ______________________________ 
                                                                Chair 
 
                                                                 ______________________________ 
                                                                 Chair Pro Tem 
 
                                                                 ______________________________ 
                                                                 Member 
 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________ 
 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
_________________________ 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
 
 
APPROVED this 12th day of October 2011 
 
 
                                                                BOARD OF COUNTYCOMMIONERS 
Benton COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 



 

 

                                                                 ______________________________ 
                                                                Chair 
 
                                                                 ______________________________ 
                                                                 Chair Pro Tem 
 
                                                                 ______________________________ 
                                                                 Member 
 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________ 
 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
_________________________ 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
 
 
 
 
WASHINGTONSTATE MILITARY 
DEPARTMENT 
 
____________________________ 
James M. Mullen, Director 
Emergency Management Division 
Washington State Military Department 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
______________________ 
 Assistant Attorney General 
 
 
 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
Code Enforcement Update – S Brown




















	Web Packet 102511.pdf
	Agenda Minutes 101811
	CA - Auditor a
	CA - Commissioners b
	CA - Human Services c
	CA - Human Services d
	CA - Human Services e
	CA - Human Services f
	CA - Human Services g
	CA - Human Services h
	CA - Human Services i
	CA - Human Services j
	CA - OPD k
	CA - Parks l
	CA - Personnel m
	CA - Personnel n
	CA - Personnel o
	CA - Personnel p
	CA - Personnel q
	CA - Sheriff r
	CA - Superior Court s
	CA - Superior Court t
	CA - Treasurer u
	CA - Treasurer v
	PH a - Ordinance Civil Fees
	PH b - Continued Vacation
	Timed a - E911 MOU
	Timed b - Code Enforcement Update Agenda 10-25-11



